
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
ELEVENTH SESSION 

Official Records 

CONTENTS 

Agenda item 31 : 
Draft International Covenants on Human Rights (con

tinued) 
Article 8 of ~he draft Covenant OR Economic, Social 

Page 

and Cultural Rights (continued) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 205 

Chairman: Mr. Hermod LANNUNG (Denmark) . 

AGENDA ITEM 31 
Draft International Covenants on Human Rights 

(E/2573, annexes I, ll and m, A/2907 and 
Add.1 and 2, A/2910 and Add.1 to 6, A/2929, 
A/3077, AjC.3jL.460, A/3149, A/C.3/L528, 
A/C.3jL.532, A/C.3jL547, AJC.3jL550, 
A/C.3/L.552jRev.1, AjC.3jL553 to 555) 
(continued) 

ARTICLE 8 oF THE DRAFT CoVENANT oN EcoNOMIC, 
SociAL AND CuLTURAL RIGHTS (E/2573, annex I A) 
(continued) 

1. Mr. AMAN (Sweden) said that his delegation was 
in favour of the original text of article 8 of the draft 
Covenant (E/2573, annex I A). However, as amend
ments had been introduced, he had oo comment on them. 

2. The Canadian amendment (AjC.3jL.553) seemed 
to clarify the article, by eliminating the doubts that had 
been felt in connexion with the use of the phrase "trade 
unions of his choice", which might limit the rights of 
trade unions to control their internal organization, 
especially with regard to qualification for membership. 
The insertion of the words "subject to the rules of the 
organization concerned" would help to prevent mis
interpretation. 
3. The Swedish delegation would be unable to vote 
either for the revised three-Power amendments (A/ 
C.3/L.552/Rev.l) or for the sub-amendments submit
ted by the Netherlands and the United Kingdom 
(A/C.3jL.555), because they contained limitations in 
two respects. One concerned the strike weapon and its 
relation to internal legislation, and the second the extent 
to which various categories of the population would be 
allowed to strike. In Sweden, the trade-union move
ment embraced nearly all employed persons; and with 
increasing membership the unions had shown an increas
ing sense of responsibility, for the advantages and dis
advantages of trade-union action had to be weighed 
more carefully as an organization increased in size. 
Thirty years ago strikes had caused an average loss of 
eight working days per worker per year; the figure now 
was one and a half hours per worker per year. That 
happy development was undoubtedly due oo the fact 
that the principle of the right to strike had never been 
disputed. In the early days of the movement there 
would have been much social unrest if the workers had 
not had the final recourse of the strike at their disposal; 
however, it would be a mistake to single out the right 

205 

THIRD COMMITTEE, 722nd 
MEETINC 

Monday, 7 January 1957, 
at 10.50 a.m. 

New York 

to strike for mention in the Covenant, without men
tioning all the other means by which organized labour 
could attain its ends. 
4. Trade-union rights were encouraged in Sweden to 
such an extent that not only the State administration 
but the police and the armed forces were organized 
into trade unions. The only limitation of trade-union 
rights for persons in those categories was that top
ranking officials were not allowed to strike. In matters 
of national security, the functions of certain technicians 
and workers might be just as important as, if not more 
important than, those of the armed forces. The decisive 
factor must be that of the degree of danger to society; 
from that standpoint, a strike by power-station engi
neers might be more serious than a strike by the police. 
Furthermore, the rapid growth of mechanization might 
eventually lead to situations where a strike by a handful 
of key workers could paralyse the life of a nation. In 
view of those considerations, it seemed inadvisable to 
place any special restrictions on the trade-union rights 
of the State administration, the police or the armed 
forces. 
5. Mr. BRATANOV (Bulgaria) said that the trade
union movement in Bulgaria had played an important 
part in the social and political life of the country, and 
that trade unions had supported all progressive national 
movements since the end of the Turkish domination. 
The pre-war regime had tried to impose official unions 
on the workers, but after the war absolute freedom of 
trade-union rights had been re-established, and the Bul
garian people were now organized into mass, non-party 
unions, which they joined voluntarily. The unions had 
considerable influence; they gave their views during 
the drafting of production plans, made direct proposals 
to the Government with regard to labour legislation 
and participated in various social measures. 

6. Because of the importance of the trade unions and 
because the individual alone was powerless to defend 
his interests against his employer, his delegation con
sidered that the inclusion of an article guaranteeing 
trade-union rights would increase the efficacy of all the 
other articles of the draft Covenant. However, it was 
not enough to guarantee the right of the individual to 
join trade unions for the protection of his economic 
and social interests; States must be required to guaran
tee the right of the trade unions themselves to operate 
without hindrance. The Bulgarian delegation would 
therefore support the text proposed in the revised three
Power amendments ( AjC.3 jL.552jRev.l), which de
fined the obligations of States and the rights of trade 
unions more explicitly than did the original article. It 
was regrettable, however, that the obligation to ensure 
the exercise of those rights without reprisals against 
members or leaders of trade unions had been omitted 
from the revised text of the amendments. Moreover, 
the provision in paragraph 1 (c) of the proposed text 
that the right should be subject to no limitations other 
than those required in a democratic society for the pro-

AjC.3jSR.722 



206 General Assembly-Eleventh Session-Third Committee 

tection of the rights and freedoms of others, although 
sound in principle, was out of place in a legal text. Its 
vagueness might provide a loop-hole for States wish
ing to evade their obligations ; it needed clarification, 
and the matter could more appropriately be discussed 
in connexion with part II of the draft Covenant. 
7. For the same reasons, the Bulgarian delegation 
could not support the sub-amendments submitted by the 
Netherlands and the United Kingdom (AjC.3jL.SSS). 
The United Kingdom representative had said that in 
such an important article States should undertake 
clearly-defined obligations; but the proposal to impose 
a series of restrictions, particularly restrictions of a 
somewhat ambiguous nature, did not answer that pur
pose. There was no justification for making an excep
tion in the case of article 8 by inserting a number of 
restrictions which rightly belonged in part II of the 
draft Covenant. Furthermore, the Bulgarian delegation 
could not agree to the proposal that the exercise of 
trade-union rights by members of the State administra
tion should be restricted. 
8. The purpose of the Canadian amendment (A/C.3/ 
L.S53) was not quite clear. Since that amendment had 
no direct bearing on the substance of the article, and 
especially on the obligations of States, the Bulgarian 
delegation considered it unnecessary. 
9. Mr. MASSOUD-ANSARI (Iran), referring to 
the USSR amendment (A/C.3jL.S47), said that his 
delegation doubted the wisdom of incorporating a col
lective right in an article relating to an individual right. 
However, he would abide by the wishes of the majority 
in that connexion. A more serious criticism of the 
USSR amendment was that it set no limitations what
soever on the exercise of trade-union rights. The 
USSR representative had argued that the point would 
be covered by the provisions of article 4; but article 4 
had not yet been finally drafted, and article 8 was so 
important that the necessary limitations should be speci
fied in the text of that article itself. 
10. For those reasons, he would vote in favour of point 
1 of the sub-amendments submitted by the Nether lands 
and the United Kingdom (AjC.3/L.555). However, it 
was inadvisable to enumerate the restrictions on trade
union rights in detail. The terms of the first paragraph 
of the text proposed in point 3 of the sub-amendments 
were controversial, and he would be obliged to abstain 
from voting on that paragraph. He would also abstain 
from voting on the second paragraph of the text pro
posed in point 3, since references to other international 
instruments should be avoided in the Covenants, which 
should eventually become the code on which interna
tional conventions on specific subjects would be based. 
11. Turning to the revised three-Power amendments 
(AjC.3/552/Rev.1), he expressed his appreciation of 
the sponsors' efforts to conciliate widely divergent 
views. He would be able to vote in favour of the intro
ductory paragraph and of sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) 
of the text proposed for paragraph 1, which reproduced 
the original article with some slight changes. He would 
also be able to support paragraph 1 (c), which repre
sented a synthesis of the USSR amendment (AjC.3/ 
L.547) with the text proposed in point 1 of the sub
amendments submitted by the Netherlands and the 
United Kingdom (A/C.3/L.555). He would not, how
ever, vote in favour of paragraph (d), for he saw no 
reason why the right to strike should be mentioned spe
cifically. Although it was recognized under most national 
legislations, it was generally regarded as the last resort 

of workers seeking satisfaction of their claims. There 
was no justification for mentioning the right to strike to 
the exclusion of the many other means of settling labour 
disputes. Moreover, it was difficult to distinguish be
tween strikes engineered by political intriguers and those 
started to promote the real economic and social inter
ests of the workers. In under-developed countries, 
where industries and the trade-union movement were 
in their infancy, it was essential to protect those indus
tries from the effects of irresponsible trade-union action. 
Both rights and duties must be taken into account. 
Indeed, it might be wise to draw up a covenant of duties 
and obligations on lines parallel with the Covenants on 
Human Rights. At all events, the Third Committee 
must exercise prudence, and avoid any mention of rights 
which lent themselves to abuse. Finally, while he had no 
objection to paragraph 2 of the text proposed in the 
three-Power amendments, he did not think it necessary 
and would abstain in the vote on it. 
12. He would vote in favour of the Canadian amend
ment (A/C.3jL.S53), but suggested that it might be 
improved by replacing the words "subject only to" by 
the words "in conformity with". 
13. Mr. SERRANO (Philippines) reminded the 
Committee of the history of the draft Covenants and of 
the wealth of experience that had gone into their draft
ing. The Committee must bear in mind its terms of 
reference under General Assembly resolution 833 (IX), 
which instructed it to consider the draft Covenants arti
cle by article, but while authorizing it to consider amend
ments enjoined it to complete its consideration at the 
earliest possible date. The danger lay in trying to include 
as much as possible of the national experience of some 
countries, without due regard for the degree of devel
opment of others. It was essential to strike the golden 
mean and to take into consideration the need for sig
nature by the largest possible number of States. 
14. The amendments submitted to article 8 had revived 
some sharp divergences of opinion that had been mani
fested in the Commission on Human Rights. It had 
been stressed, on the one hand, that the Covenants must 
not become a second edition of the Universal Declara
tion of Human Rights, and on the other hand, that all 
the aspects of every right could not be enumerated. The 
Philippine delegation, for its part, had considered that 
the words "for the protection of his economic and social 
interests" were superfluous, since that was the objective 
of all the rights enumerated in the draft Covenant. 
However, it had refrained from pressing that view, as 
it considered that any further tampering with the exist
ing article would throw the door open to large numbers 
of amendments and would thus impede the speedy adop
tion of the draft Covenants. 
15. Turning to the revised three-Power amendments 
(A/C.3jL.552jRev.1), he said that he was able to 
accept the changes suggested in points 1, 2 and 3 with
out any difficulty. The new sub-paragraphs contained 
in point 4, however, were a different matter. Sub-para
graph (b) dealt with a collective rather than an indi
vidual right, and while one article on a collective right 
-that of self-determination-had already been included 
in the draft Covenant, the Committee should not adopt 
the present provision without at least being aware of its 
nature. Sub-paragraph (c) imposed such restrictions 
on the right of trade unions to function freely as might 
be required "for the protection of the rights and free
doms of others". Since every right recognized by law 
in a civilized society must be so exercised as not to 



722nd meeting-7 January 1957 207 

infringe the rights and freedoms of others, that pro
vision was totally unnecessary, and would only give rise 
to difficulties of interpretation and implementation. 
Before considering it at all, moreover, the Committee 
ought to decide whether it proposed to include limita
tions in every article, or would be content with a general 
limitation clause. The latter appeared to be by far the 
wiser course. Sub-paragraph (d) dealt with the right to 
strike; that right was such a natural corollary of the 
right to join and form trade unions that he was not sure 
it was necessary to mention it specifically; but if such 
mention was desired, reference should also be made to 
other and no less important rights of trade unions, 
such as the right to picket. The subject-matter of the 
new paragraph 2 of the text proposed in the revised 
three-Power amendments was already covered in article 
5, paragraph 1; and there, too, moreover, a general 
clause applying to all the articles in the draft Covenant 
would be preferable to specific clauses in each article, 
which would make the Covenant unnecessarily volumi
nous. 
16. The Canadian amendment (A/C.3jL.553) was 
superfluous, and might even be harmful. There was no 
reason to suppose that anyone would seek to join a trade 
union if he did not agree with its rules; or that a car
penter, for example, would try to join a musicians' 
union. On the other hand, the rules of some trade unions 
might be contrary to the general policies or laws of a 
particular country, and the draft Covenant should not 
give them special protection. He would abstain in the 
vote on that amendment. 
17. He was unable to vote for the USSR amendment 
( AjC.3jL.547) because the trade-union functions 
whose exercise it was proposed to guarantee were no
where defined. 
18. He was also unable to accept the sub-amendments 
submitted by the Netherlands and the United Kingdom 
(A/C.3/L.555) to the revised three-Power amendments. 
A reference to one specific Convention would be invid
ious, because it would imply the exclusion of all others; 
moreover, the purpose sought was already achieved by 
article 5, paragraph 2. The proposal to allow the State 
to place special restrictions on the exercise of trade
union rights by members of the armed forces, the police 
and the administration of the State was dangerous. The 
only acceptable limitation of the rights of any trade 
union was the legitimate exercise of the police power 
of the State; he would approve of a restriction of that 
nature, provided it was placed in a general article. 

19. Mr. AYALA MERCADO (Bolivia) said that 
while, in principle, amendments to the articles of the 
draft Covenants should be few and carefully considered, 
amendments designed to improve the original text were 
to be welcomed. The revised three-Power amendments 
(A/C.3/L.552/Rev.l), which his delegation had co
sponsored, had been drafted in that spirit; the text 
proposed in those amendments isolated the different 
elements of the text prepared by the Commission on 
Human Rights and set them forth in a clear and logical 
manner. It also introduced an element not to be found 
in the original text-the right to strike. That new idea 
had met with a favourable response in the Third Com
mittee. One reason for introducing it had been the 
necessity to protect the workers in under-developed 
countries against the reactionary tendencies of the dic
tatorships to which they so frequently succumbed pre
cisely because of the backwardness and instability of the 
economies of such countries. Another reason was that 

the under-developed countries were the first to suffer 
in an economic crisis, and the workers in those countries 
were usually the hardest hit ; it had therefore been felt 
that they should be guaranteed the right to strike so 
that they would be in a better position to defend their 
interests. The right to strike was generally recognized, 
but like the right of women to equality with men, it had 
to be mentioned specifically to make sure that it was 
implemented. He agreed with the Chilean and Nether
lands representatives that it might be wise to add a 
passage to the sub-paragraph in question to the effect 
that the right to strike should be resorted to only after 
all efforts at conciliation had failed. The revised text 
of the three-Power amendments took into account some 
elements of the USSR amendment (A/C.3jL.547) and 
of the sub-amendments submitted by the Netherlands 
and the United Kingdom (A/C.3/L.555), and he hoped 
it would be acceptable to the majority of the Committee. 

20. Mrs. MARZUKI (Indonesia) said that her dele
gation had been ready to accept article 8 of the draft 
Covenant as it stood, since it was in line with the Pro
visional Constitution of Indonesia. While she feared 
that spelling out certain aspects of the right concerned 
might weaken the article, she was prepared to accept 
the argument that the historical development of the 
trade-union movement made such an approach desir
able. She would have no difficulty in voting for points 
1, 2 and 3 of the revised three-Power amendments 
(A/C.3jL.552jRev.1). On the other hand, the new 
paragraphs proposed in point 4 of the amendments 
might have the effect of prejudicing the general concep
tion of trade-union rights ; that did not apply to the 
provision on the right to strike, which was entirely 
acceptable, on the understanding that the right in ques
tion should be exercised only as a last resort. 

21. Since a general limitation clause was already em
bodied in article 4, which dealt with the general pro
visions of the draft Covenant, point 1 of the sub-amend
ments submitted by the Netherlands and the United 
Kingdom (A/C.3jL.555) was superfluous. However, 
since the Committee had already adopted a specific 
provision in article 6, even though the same matter had 
already been covered in article 2, relating to general 
provisions, she would have no objection to the more 
broadly phrased restriction contained in paragraph 1 (c) 
of the three-Power text. She doubted the wisdom of 
introducing a reference to a specific Convention, as 
proposed by the Netherlands and the United Kingdom, 
and would prefer the new paragraph 2 of the text pro
posed in the three-Power amendments, which covered 
the same ground in a more general manner. 

22. She was prepared to vote for the USSR amend
ment (AjC.3jL.547) and the Canadian amendment 
( AjC.3 /L.553). 

23. Mr. DELHA YE (Belgium) remarked that the 
trade-union movement was highly developed in his 
country, which was an active and progressive member 
of the International Labour Organisation (ILO). 

24. He was in favour of the deletion of the phrase 
"for the promotion and protection of his economic and 
social interests" l.n paragraph 1 (a) of the text pro
posed in the three-Power amendments (A/C.3jL.552/ 
Rev .1), because the original text apparently guaranteed 
the free exercise of the right to form or join a trade 
union only with a view to the protection of the economic 
and social interests of the person concerned. In the 
view of the Belgian delegation, the right to form and 



208 General Assembly-Eleventh Session-Third Committee 

join trade unions should be absolute, and independent 
of the purpose sought by the individual. On the other 
hand, he would, of course, have no objection to the right 
laid down in the new paragraph 1 (b) of the text pro
posed in the joint amendments considered on its merits, 
in isolation from its context; but he would abstain in 
the vote on the paragraph, because it dealt with groups, 
and was therefore out of place in a covenant on human 
rights, which dealt with the rights of the individual. 
He felt, however, that the term "trade unions", used in 
article 8, should be defined. The Chilean representative 
had asserted (720th meeting) that the article, since it 
spoke of "everyone", protected the right of both em
ployees and employers to join and form trade unions; 
and he himself felt that that was desirable. However, it 
could be seen from the annotations on the text of the 
draft Covenants (A/2929, chap. XIII, para. 17) that 
the Commission on Human Rights had not intended 
article 8 to apply to employers ; he expressed the hope 
that the Committee would decide otherwise, and would 
make it clear in article 8 that the term "trade unions" 
denoted any organization of workers or employers. 
25. As he took the view that article 8 should accord 
as closely as possible with article 21 of the draft Cove
nant on Civil and Political Rights (E/2573, annex I B), 
he would vote for point 1 of the sub-amendments sub
mitted by the Netherlands and the United Kingdom 
( AjC.3jL.555). 
26. Mr. DIAZ CASANUEVA (Chile) said he wished 
to make some comments on the Belgian representative's 
observations regarding the scope of article 8. Although 
he had not been present when the matter had been dis
cussed in the Commission on Human Rights, he as
sumed that the term "trade unions" applied to both 
employers and employees. The International Labour 
Convention of 1948 referred to trade unions not only 
of workers, but of employers as well. Accordingly, any 
reference to that Convention might give rise to con
fusion, if article 8 was to be taken to apply only to 
workers. The Committee should decide whether it 
wished the scope of article 8 to be wide or limited. 
The basic ambiguity lay in the word "everyone", which 
could apply to either workers or employers. 
27. That point aside, the Chilean delegation was in 
favour of retaining the original text of article 8 
(E/2573, annex I A), with the constructive amend
ments which had been submitted during the debate. 
28. Mrs. SHOHAM-SHARON (Israel) said her 
delegation would have voted for article 8 in its original 
form, as that text represented a compromise achieved 
after long discussions in the Commission on Human 
Rights. A covenant designed to safeguard the minimum 
individual economic, social and cultural liberties could 
not include an enumeration of all the implications of 
such liberties for the collectivities within which they 
were to be exercised. The fact that there could be no 
freedom of the individual to join trade unions unless the 
trade unions themselves were free to function without 
undue restrictions was obvious. 
29. Several fundamental points were involved in the 
discussion of the amendments. First, it could be argued 
that the rights of trade unions were not individual 
rights. Secondly, there was the question of the relation 
of the draft Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural 
Rights to other legal instruments dealing with the same 
subject; a conflict of obligations could occur under the 
various international instruments. That was a pr6blem 
which her delegation had raised in the discussion of 

previous articles. The third point arose in connexion 
with paragraph 2 of the text proposed in the revised 
three-Power amendments (A/C.3jL.SS2jRev.1), which 
was general in application. Obviously, every interna
tional agreement could be thwarted by national legisla
tion; but in accepting obligations under an international 
covenant, a State renounced the right to enact conflict
ing national legislation. If that were not so, it would be 
questionable whether international agreements had any 
usefulness at all. Her delegation had no doubts as to 
the substance of the paragraph in question, but only 
as to its wording and location. The wording could be 
interpreted to mean that without such a paragraph, 
States would retain their freedom in relation to the 
rights dealt with in paragraph 1. And in view of its 
general nature, the provision would be better placed in 
the general part of the Covenant. To place it at the end 
of one article only could give rise to the interpretation 
that no such considerations applied to all the other 
articles. 
30. She wished to explain how her delegation intended 
to vote on the amendments before the Committee. Since 
her Government was an enthusiastic supporter of the 
trade-union movement, it would not oppose the proposed 
expanded provisions on the rights of trade unions on 
technical grounds. Her delegation would vote for the 
second paragraph of the text proposed in point 3 of the 
sub-amendments submitted by the Netherlands and the 
United Kingdom (A/C.3jL.555), if it could be given 
the assurance that in the final text that paragraph would 
be placed with the transitional provisions. It would vote 
against paragraph 2 of the revised three-Power text 
(A/C.3/L.552/Rev.1). It had some misgivings with 
regard to the vague drafting of paragraph 1 (c) of that 
text, which would open the door to restrictions imposed 
on the basis of criteria that were subject to the most 
varied interpretations. Israel would therefore abstain 
in the vote on that sub-paragraph. 

31. With respect to the first paragraph of the text pro
posed in point 3 of the sub-amendments submitted by 
the Netherlands and the United Kingdom (AjC.3/ 
L.555), her delegation would vote for the first two 
categories mentioned, namely, "armed forces" and 
"police", but she saw no justification for imposing re
strictions on the right of civil servants to join trade 
unions. In Israel, the civil service was organized in a 
trade union affiliated to the General Federation of 
Labour. She would therefore vote against the third 
category if, as had been requested by the representative 
of Greece (721st meeting), a separate vote was taken. 
32. Mr. THIERRY (France) complimented the Bo
livian, Peruvian and Uruguayan delegations for the con-; 
ciliatory spirit they had shown in revising their amend
ments. He wished to suggest three drafting changes in 
the French text. First, in paragraph 1 (a) of the text 
proposed in the amendments (A/C.3jL.552jRev.l) 
the word "prt?{erence" was weak and ambiguous, and 
should be replaced by "choi.x". In the same phrase, he 
suggested that the word "syndicat" should be used in 
the singular, for the sake of consistency; the phrase 
would then read: "au syndicat de son choix''. In the text 
of paragraph 1 (c), he suggested that the word "restric
tions" should be replaced by "limitations". With respect 
to paragraph 2, the phrase "ni d'applications de la loi" 
was not specific; the phrase should read " ... de mesures 
legislatives ou autres qui leur portent atteinte . .. " or 
possibly " ... de mesures legislatives ou administratives 
qui leur portent atteinte . .. ". 



722nd meeting-7 January 1957 209 

33. Mr. HOARE (United Kingdom) said that the 
Netherlands and the United Kingdom had tried, in their 
sub-amendments (AjC.3jL.555), to change the text 
proposed in the three-Power amendments (A/C.3/ 
L.552jRev.1) as little as possible. They had added to 
paragraph 1 (a) a reference to restrictions and a limita
tion on them in the terms of their amendment (AjC.3j 
L.550) to the original text (E/2573, annex I A). No 
amendment had been proposed to paragraph 1 (b) of 
the revised three-Power text because specific restric
tions on that paragraph did not seem necessary, but 
that did not mean that the United Kingdom supported 
it. The amendments to paragraph 1 (c) were intended 
to bring the restrictions mentioned therein into the same 
terms as those proposed for paragraph 1 (a). He wished 
to amend the first of those amendments (AjC.3/L.555, 
point 2 (a)) to read: "Delete the word 'and'." The word 
"freely" used in paragraph 1 (c) was less open to ob
jection than the word "unimpeded". The United King
dom could not accept paragraph 1 (d) which, as the 
representative of the Philippines had rightly pointed 
out, made no mention of other aspects of trade-union 
rights, such as the right to picket. Paragraph 1 (d) 
should be deleted; but since it already contained a limi
tation, his delegation did not propose its amendment. 
That limitation, with the very wide reference to "the 
laws of the particular country" could, however, make 
the right inoperable. To those who had objected to the 
first paragraph of the text proposed in point 3 of the 
sub-amendments submitted by the Netherlands and the 
United Kingdom he pointed out that it did not neces
sarily imply the denial of all rights of the armed forces, 
or of the police or of the administration of the State, 
but merely provided for the possibility of lawful restric
tions. Paragraph 2 of the revised three-Power text did 
not cover the same ground as the saving clause proposed 
by the Netherlands and the United Kingdom in the sec
on paragraph of the text proposed in point 3 of their 
sub-amendments. He would vote against it, because it 
was a mere duplication of the undertaking at the be
ginning of the text ; its only effect would be to cause 
doubt concerning the validity of that undertaking. 

Printed in U.S.A. 

34. He thanked the representative of Greece for the 
lucid analysis of the amendments which he had given 
at the previous meeting. In the course of his statement 
the representative of Greece had conceded that the level 
of restrictions on trade-union rights proposed by the 
Netherlands and the United Kingdom might be neces
sary, but might be inserted in the final draft of article 4. 
That article might not be adopted, however, and if it 
was, its provisions would have to be quite general, an<l 
not as specific as those in the amendments submitted 
by the Netherlands and the United Kingdom. 

35. He agreed with the Philippines representative that 
it would be undesirable to attach restrictions to every 
article. However, article 8 differed from most of the 
other provisions in that it imposed an immediate and 
binding obligation. It did so in precisely the same field 
as did article 21 of the draft Covenant on Civil and 
Political Rights (E/2573, annex I B) and should there
fore be in the same terms. The words "protection of 
the rights and freedoms of others" in the amendments 
submitted by the Netherlands and the United Kingdom 
had been taken from article 21 of that draft Covenant; 
similar provisions appeared in articles 18 and 19. 

36. The reference to the International Labour Con
vention of 1948 in the amendments submitted by the 
Netherlands and the United Kingdom had also been 
taken from article 21 of the draft Covenant on Civil 
and Political Rights. The Philippines representative 
had proposed the principle of non-interference with texts 
settled by the Commission ; the amendments submitted 
by the Netherlands and the United Kingdom were prac
tically all taken from the Commission's own text of 
article 21. 

37. He would add that the restrictions proposed were 
not peculiar to trade unions ; under article 21 of the 
draft Covenant on Civil and Political Rights they could 
be applied to all forms of association, and were clearly 
appropriate for the regulation of the relations between 
associations and society in general. 

The meeting rose at 1 p.m. 

M-77301-March 1957-2,150 




